WHITE PAPER

On The

U.S. CONTRACT SECURITY INDUSTRY Also known as: Security Guard Industry

MARKET • MARGINS • MERGERS • MULTIPLES

JULY 2014

Prepared by:

ROBERT H. **PERRY** *& Associates, Incorporated*

www.roberthperry.com

Table of Contents

MARKET	
DEFINING THE "CONTRACT SECURITY" MARKET	1
THE PUBLIC OPINION OF THE CONTRACT SECURITY MARKET	2
RECENT IMPORTANT DEVELOPMENTS IN THE INDUSTRY	3
SIZE OF THE U.S. CONTRACT SECURITY INDUSTRY	5
NUMBER OF COMPANIES	5
REVENUE SIZE AND GROWTH PROSPECTS FOR THE U.S. CONTRACT	
SECURITY MARKET	6
COMPOSITION – BY COMPANY SIZE	7
MARKET BY NO. OF COMPANIES AND REVENUE MATRIX	8
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES	10
THE CONTRACT SECURITY MARKET AND THE RECENT	
ECONOMIC DOWNTURN	11
BANKING RELATIONSHIPS	11
SOME CONTRACT SECURITY COMPANIES ARE GROWING	11
FACTORS CAUSING GROWTH AND CONTRACTION OF	
REVENUE IN THE CONTRACT SECURITY INDUSTRY	12
GROWTH FACTORS	12
FACTORS CAUSING CONTRACTION	13
CONTRACT SECURITY PERSONNEL (GUARDS) VS. ELECTRONICS	14
MITIGATING THE CONCERN	16
MARGINS MARGINS AND EBITDA	19
REVENUE, PROFIT AND EBITDA MATRIX	20
KEVENUE, FROFII AND EDITDA MATRIA	20
MERGERS	
MERGER AND ACQUISITION ACTIVITY	23
U.S. CONTRACT SECURITY TRANSACTIONS	24
FOREIGN CONTRACT SECURITY TRANSACTIONS	24
U.S. ELECTRONICS COMPANY TRANSACTIONS	25
FOREIGN ELECTRONICS COMPANY TRANSACTIONS	25
OVERVIEW OF WORLDWIDE COMPLETED TRANSACTIONS	26
WHY SLOWDOWN IN ACQUISITION ACTIVITY FOR 2013	28
WHAT WILL SECOND HALF OF 2014 AND 2014 BRING TO M&A	29
PRIVATE EQUITY GROUPS MAKING INVESTMENTS IN THE CONTRACT	
SECURITY INDUSTRY	30
THE POSITIVE ASPECTS OF THE CONTRACT SECURITY INDUSTRY	31
THE NEGATIVE ASPECTS OF THE CONTRACT SECURITY INDUSTRY	32
(CONTINUED)	

MULTIPLES	
SELLING PRICES FOR LARGE CONTRACT SECURITY COMPANY TRANSACTIONS	34
SELLING PRICES FOR SMALL CONTRACT SECURITY COMPANY	
TRANSACTIONS	36
SELLING MULTIPLES	36
THE AFFORDABLE CARE ACT AND THE ANTICIPATED VALUATION	
OF SELLING COMPANIES	37
IT'S STILL A SELLER'S MARKET	38
HOW LONG WILL THE MARKET BE IN THE SELLER'S FAVOR	38
FACTORS DRIVING OWNERS TO SELL IN TODAY'S MARKET	39
WHY OWNERS ARE NOT RUSHING TO PUT THE COMPANY ON THE	
MARKET, IN SPITE OF SHRINKING MARGINS AND REVENUE	41
OUTLOOK	
CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES FOR OWNERS OF CONTRACT	
SECURITY COMPANIES	43
CHALLENGES	43
NEW HEALTHCARE BILL (AFFORDABLE CARE ACT) AND THE	
INDIVIDUAL MANDATE	43
FURTHER UNIONIZATION OF THE CONTRACT SECURITY INDUSTRY INCREASE IN FEDERAL INCOME, CAPITAL GAINS AND	44
INHERITANCE TAXES	44

HIGHER UNEMPLOYMENT AND OTHER TAXES

REFERENCES

ABOUTUS

OPPORTUNITIES

45

45



Defining the "Contract Security" Market

TREND: The term Contract Security as used in this white paper report describes the companies in the U.S. market today that provide mostly professional security officers to government agencies or commercial customers on a temporary hourly basis or pursuant to a permanent contractual agreement.

Although, on an international basis, generally the companies that provide these services are still referred to as "guarding companies" or "manned guarding companies" we will, for this white paper report, use the term "Contract Security Companies"; which is now the most popular term used by most of the professional companies in the U.S. offering security officer services.

The majority of the annual revenue for these companies comes from security officer services. Below is a list of some of the auxiliary services now being offered by contract security companies:

- Security Officer
- Special Event Security
- Risk Analysis
- Security Consulting
- Loss Prevention
- Investigators
- Background Screening
- Facility Design
- Roving Vehicle Patrol Services
- Concierge Services
- Alarm services and security systems integration (although many contract security companies do not actually perform this service in-house; they refer this type of work to a "partner" that specializes in providing the product or service).
- Integrated Guarding a new term coined by the large national and international companies to describe video monitoring and vehicle patrol in combination with on-site manned guarding; or to take the place of on-site guarding.



The Public Opinion of the Contract Security Market

The contract security industry has been striving for many years to elevate how it's perceived in the public opinion marketplace and it has made great progress in this endeavor, in spite of Hollywood making movies like "Paul Blart: Mall Cop" and "Night at the Museum" that painted unflattering, demeaning pictures of security officers.

The contract security officer of today tends to be better educated, better trained, and in several areas, more qualified to handle the security functions demanded by the company's customers. This didn't happen overnight – it's the result of efforts on the part of the owners that want their company to be a truly professional security organization; and national security organizations, such as; NASCO (www.nasco.org), ASIS International (www.asisonline.org), and NCISS (www.nciss.org), as well as the many state agencies and organizations working together to create legislation and best practices procedures for the industry. The general public also demanded this change, but there are still serious improvements that need to be, and are being, made in the industry.

Just like any other highly fragmented industry (as reported in the next section, there are an estimated 8,000 individual contract security companies in the U.S.), the contract security industry has its rouge companies that occasionally get bad publicity, but in spite of this occasional happening, the perception about the contract security market in the minds of the general public has definitely been elevated over the past few years.

> In previous white papers, we told how the contract security industry has evolved from calling itself "security guard companies" to terms that better identify the multiple menus of services it now offers. For more on how the industry and general public is responding to the evolution from "security guard" to "contract security", click below to view a previous year's White Paper:

> > July, 2010 July, 2011 July, 2012 July, 2013



Recent Important Developments in the Contract Security and Electronics Security Industry

• Contract Security Companies Expanding their Technology Offerings as a Way to Increase Margins - Several of the large contract security companies have started an electronics division or partnered with an electronics company in an effort to increases its menu of services to its customers – with services having better margins than traditional "guarding". Below are excerpts from announcements a few of the leaders in the contract security market are saying about this:

SECURITAS:

Alf Gorranson, CEO of Securitas, in the <u>December 31, 2013 FULL YEAR</u> <u>REPORT</u>, tells shareholders that Securitas plans to increase its revenue in "integrated guarding" – supplementing traditional on-site guards with remote video and vehicle patrol. Presently at 8% of annual revenues, Securitas plans to increase this to approximately 20% by the end of the year 2015. By doing this, Securitas should be able to gain market share; a plan put in place through large technology investments several years ago. This will also improve the earnings for the shareholders and help offset the cost of the Affordable Care Act; since the "integrated guarding" produces operating profits in the 10% range, as opposed to 4-5% for traditional on-site manned guarding services.

UNIVERSAL PROTECTION SERVICES:

In January 2014, Universal Protection bought THRIVE Intelligence, what Steve Jones, the CEO of Universal, describes as a state-of-the-art remote video monitoring company. In June of 2014, Universal made another buy in the systems integration market – City Wide Electric Systems. City Wide was headquartered in California and serviced 2,000 commercial customers. These two acquisitions gives Universal a nationwide coverages, as well as adding to Universal's already established systems integration business operating mostly in the California and East Coast Markets. Steve Jones said, of these acquisitions..."Our growth in the area of security systems integration has increasing importance to our clients as part of their total security solutions. These acquisitions strengthen our offering as a key player in this market...".

G4S:

<u>G4S expanded its systems integration in 2009 with the purchase of Adesta</u>. G4S (U.S.) entered the electronics sector in 2008 with the purchase of Touchdown, a systems integrator for commercial building management. Then in 2009, G4S (U.S.) increased its presence in the integration market through



the purchase of Adesta, a company that specialized in security for seaports and petrochemical sites. G4S paid \$66 million for this company that reported \$92 million in revenues for 2008. Soon after these two acquisitions, Drew Levine, the president of G4S U.S., announced that "... it was the company's goal to integrate its technology offering with its manned guarding services to better serve its customers".

In a June 17, 2014 news release, G4S explains the merits of using "robots" as security guards. Their robot recruit called "Bob", being developed through a partnership through the STRANDS project at the University of Birmingham, carries out tasks such as patrolling the offices, and monitoring the environment, checking that doors are closed and that desks are clear. David Ella, VP Technology Marketing at G4S Technology stated, "The STRANDS project isn't going to produce a robot which can replace a human, but what it is going to do is support the security team by adding an additional patrolling resource."

Security giants, U.S. Security Associates, Incorporated and AlliedBarton:

Both of these companies have partnered with systems integration companies – U.S. Security Associates with Stanley Convergent Security Systems and AlliedBarton with Viewpoint Monitoring as a way to offer their guarding customers electronic security services without having to actually start a division (which would require a very large financial investment) for this service offering.

- Drones Being Considered in Providing Security LPT Security Consulting considering use of drones a July 14, 2014 news article by Security Director News quotes J. Patrick Murphy, president of LPT Security Consulting ..." at a mall, for example, a drone could be programmed to fly over the parking lot for broad surveillance. If someone at Point B is doing something odd, then a guard could be sent to that scene. At a larger site, such as a refinery, a drone could be used for surveillance on the "back 40", instead of sending out guards to regularly patrol. For emergency planning, it's limitless".
- Protection 1 for Sale or Contemplating an IPO? As this white paper was going to press, a breaking news release came out that Protection 1 might be for sale, and then a separate news outlet reported that Protection 1 wasn't going on the market, but that it might be considering an IPO (initial public offering). The SDM (Security Dealers Magazine) lists Protection 1 as having \$429.6 million in gross revenue for 2013 about \$350 million from residential and commercial monitoring customers, with the rest coming from installations and systems integration



Size of the U.S. Contract Security Industry

TREND: The matrix making up the number of companies in the market continues to indicate a very fragmented market, with a few large companies controlling the majority of the gross revenues for the industry.

Number of Companies

Trend: No significant change from the July 2013 white paper report

Many sources report around 10,000 individual contract security companies in the United States alone, with 1 (one) report indicating 14,000 companies. We believe these figures are somewhat inflated for the following reasons: 1. the figures were compiled from reports using SIC (Standard Industrial Classification) codes and in some instances, investigative and other small companies not offering traditional contract security services are included in the 7381 classification 2. Duplication in counting – some reporting agencies are counting branch offices of a multi-office national contract security company, as separate companies.

Our firm has been building a database of U.S. contract security companies for more than 30 years, and has identified approximately 6,000 single companies that employ more than 100 personnel and provide mostly contract security officer services. We feel that our database is reasonably accurate and, when the companies employing less than 100 personnel are added, the total number of companies offering contract security officer services is in the 8,000 range. There's no indication that a significant number of new companies have started up since last year, therefore we will continue to use 8,000 as the estimated number for the total U.S. contract security companies throughout this report.

In spite of the fact that the market is very large, it's also very fragmented and there's very little public information on the financial performance and the operating practices for the privately-held companies. We have, over the past 30 years, come to learn that this lack of public information is due primarily to the nature of the business and the owners' mindset. It is, after all, the security business, which by definition operates under a code of secrecy. There are no associations of contract security companies that accumulate and publish financial statistics on this industry – although there are several associations and consultants that publish this information for electronic security companies.



Revenue, Size and Growth Prospects for the U.S. Contract Security Market

Trend: The two well-recognized industry reporting agencies are mostly in agreement on the size of the market and the prospects for the future – there will be real growth in the overall market figures, coming primarily from companies converting from "in-house" to contract security.

The latest Freedonia Group study indicates that the U.S. Contracted Security Services market, restrained by the economic downturn beginning in 2007, grew only 1.1% from 2006 – 2011. This report also indicates that the contract security services market in the U.S. was \$19 Billion in 2011 and was expected to grow at an impressive rate of 5.5 percent per year until 2016, at which time the market should reach \$24.5 Billion. Freedonia says the growth is coming from "contract security being supported by the regulatory burden of fielding an in-house security force. Additionally, security is not a revenue-producing activity for most companies and is outside their core competencies, providing opportunities for contractors." The Affordable Care Act has prompted many companies with in-house security to now consider contracting out this function as a way to reduce the labor force, thereby reducing the costs associated with the Act.

The latest IBISWorld industry report puts the current U.S. Contract Security market at a little over \$21 Billion. This report goes on to say that...." the labor intensive activities of the U.S. Contract Security market are being substituted by monitoring technology and equipment, such as closed-circuit television (CCTV) systems. Coupled with the decline in demand during the recession, rising competition has caused profit margins to fall. In response, larger industry players are offering more value-added services to mitigate profit declines. Although the industry has a lot of non-employer firms (e.g. private investigators and bodyguards, for example), some that offer their services on a part-time basis to supplement other sources of income, the industry also has a lot of medium – and large- size firms, which typically offer integrated security, value-added services and cash handling". In several places in this white paper, we report on the efforts of the mega companies to ramp up their "integrated guarding" and "offsite video monitoring" offerings as a way to reduce the cost of security provided the customer and, at the same time, enhance the margins of the security provider.

In addition to the reports of these two well-respected reporting agencies, we feel that there are two important questions that should be answered regarding the future and past growth of the U.S. Contract Security industry: 1. what is the size of the "in-house" market – one of the largest sources of future growth for the U.S. Contract Security industry, and 2. has the market really grown, even if only modestly, or are the numbers more reflective of the U.S. inflation rates?



In compiling this year's white paper, we could not find any published information on the size of the "in-house" security market. However, several key executives at the national and international companies seem to think the "in-house" market is about the size of the current contract security market. If that's the case, the total "Manned Security" market for the U.S. is about \$40 Billion – and indicates the source for a large portion of the future increase in U.S. Contract Security as more and more companies outsource this service to reduce costs brought about by high pension costs as well as anticipated Affordable Care Act costs.

We also, in compiling this year's white paper report, considered the probable impact the inflation rates had on the increase in the total market figures. Based on our research, the U.S. Contract Security market was at about \$12 Billion 10 years ago. The Consumer Price Index increase over the past 10 years applied against the \$12 Billion comes to about \$16 Billion. This coupled with the fact that a few years ago, the reporting agencies expanded their scope of what's included in the definition of contract security to include investigators (often operating as one-man operations) and other non-traditional "manned security" functions, indicates that there's been very little growth in the overall market in terms of companies converting from "in-house" to contract security or existing customers increasing their contract security needs.

Some of the large security companies don't seem to agree with the reporting agencies on the projected growth of the security industry. There was a mention of this in the Full Year Report for Securitas (Year 2013): the report says ..."due to current market dynamics and a gradual increase of the use of technology in security solutions, the security market in mature markets [such as the U.S.] is no longer expected to grow 1 to 2 percent faster than GDP as it has historically, but rather the same pace as GDP. In the future, this trend could be improved through increased outsourcing of currently insourced traditional guarding activities and by allowing the private security industry to take over services performed by public authorities and governments".

However, and worth repeating, the good news is that both Freedonia and IBISWorld have predicted a large part of the increase in the U.S. Contract Security market over the next five years will come from companies converting from "in-house" to contract security and not necessarily a function of the expected inflation rates; which underscores what the Securitas Full Report says; and what others are saying about the move from "in house" to "contract security".

Composition – by Company Size

TREND: The U.S. Contract Security market continues to be very fragmented with 5 companies now controlling over 50% of the market.

For this year's white paper report, we reviewed our files to determine which companies were eligible but did not appear on the "Largest Companies" lists as published by some of the popular newsletters and reports. For the most part, these company owners have shared their revenue figures with us on the condition that their identities remain confidential.

This new matrix reveals that there are a lot more large U.S. contract security companies than previously reported. Note in the matrix below that the increase in the number of companies appearing is a result of our more extensive search for companies that should be included in the numbers, which we did for the white paper published for July of 2013, as well as this current report. Also note that this list includes primarily the companies that do not have a large presence in the Federal contract security market.

		No. of Companies	Annual Revenue (in Billion \$)
(1) (2)	Over \$1 billion	5	11.2
(2)	\$300M - \$1B	2	.9
(2)(3)	\$100M - \$300M	9	1.4
(2)(3)	\$50M - \$100M	15	1.1
(2)(3)	\$20M - \$50M	43	1.4
(3)	\$5M - \$20M	200	2.0
(4)	\$0 - \$5M	7,727	2.0
		(6) 8,000	(5) 20.0

New Matrix of Market by Number of Companies and Revenue

- (1) 2 companies, representing \$6.6 B in revenue, are foreign owned
- (2) From July 2014 issue of *Security Letter* (Revenue figures mostly year-end 2013)
- (3) Estimated based on information in files of Robert H. Perry & Associates, Inc.
- (4) Arithmetical function to come to the 8,000 companies and \$20B revenue
- (5) Freedonia estimates \$20 Billion. IBISWorld estimates \$21 Billion [See page 6 of this report].
- (6) Some sources indicate the number of companies as 10,000 14,000. [See more on the number of companies on page 5 of this report.]

Below is pertinent information on the five companies with revenues exceeding \$1 Billion:

1. Securitas - \$3.6 Billion for 2013 (\$3.5 Billion in 2012) in the U.S. started with the initial purchase of Pinkerton's in 1999. Pinkerton's had over \$1 Billion in revenues at the time of purchase. Securitas followed with the purchase of Burns, a \$1.5 Billion company, in 2000; then went on to make about a dozen other acquisitions with combined revenues at the time of purchase of approximately \$500 Million. As indicated later in this report, Securitas has concentrated most of its recent acquisitions as a way to increase market share. At \$3.6 Billion in the U.S., Securitas has approximately 18% of the total market; while it has about 12% in the United Kingdom market.

- 2. G4S \$3.0 Billion for 2013 (\$2.7 Billion in 2012) in the U.S. made its initial entry into the U.S. with the purchase of Wackenhut in 2002. At the time of purchase, Wackenhut was billing approximately \$2.8 Billion. Since that time, G4S has divested some of the traditional standing security officer business, and has limited its acquisition activity in the U.S. security market to mostly electronics and high-end investigative type companies. On March 5, 2013, G4S announced that it was divesting its \$600 million Federal government business and the transaction was expected to be finalized by June 2013. As of the preparation of this white paper report, the sale is still in process [Click here to read the announcement on G4S's website]. As indicated later in this report, G4S has concentrated most of its recent acquisition activity in the emerging markets, soon to represent 50% of its total revenue. At \$3.0 Billion in the U.S., G4S has approximately 15% market share; while it has about 25% market share in the United Kingdom market.
- 3. AlliedBarton \$1.9 Billion for 2013 (\$1.8 Billion in 2012) was formed through the initial purchase of Spectaguard in 1998. Spectaguard had revenues of approximately \$60 Million at the time of purchase. Since that time, AlliedBarton has purchased large companies such as Barton Protective with approximately \$400 Million in revenue and Initial Security with approximately \$240 Million in revenue. In total, AlliedBarton has made approximately 10 acquisitions with combined revenues of approximately \$1 Billion.
- 4. U.S. Security Associates Now approximately \$1.3 Billion got its start with the initial purchase of Advance Security from Figgie International in 1993. At the time of purchase, Advance had revenues of approximately \$70 Million. Since that time, U.S. Security has made approximately 25 acquisitions of mid to large sized companies plus a number of smaller acquisitions with combined revenues of over \$1 Billion (including \$350 Million in revenue from Andrews International, its most recent large transaction).
- 5. Universal Protection the newest member of the Billion Dollar club and crossed the Billion Dollars in revenue mark in 2014. Universal has been on the fast track for making acquisitions for the last 4 years (35 acquisitions of Contract Security and Systems Integration companies). Universal had revenues of about \$25 million 14 years ago when it started its path to becoming a mega security company; and in addition to growing through acquisitions (totaling about \$600 million in revenue), has accomplished double digit organic growth each year since then.



Number of Employees

Trend: No significant change from July 2013 white paper report

Some reports show around 1.2 million security officers in the U.S. (to include full and part-time personnel) and other reports put the figure at around 1.5 million; and one report indicated around 2.0 million. But it's interesting to note that, whichever figure is the most accurate, the number of contract security personnel is about two and a half times the number of public law enforcement personnel. If, in fact, the contract security market is getting more undesirable publicity than the public force – it could be primarily because the contract security officer market is so much larger than the public force; thereby a much larger "public opinion" target. The SECURITY LETTER reports in its July 2014 issue that 8% of the U.S. guard force are members of a labor union.



The Contract Security Market and the Recent Economic Downturn

Trend: No significant change from July 2013 report

While traditionally the contract security market has been viewed as recession proof, most contract security companies will feel at least a mild set-back through a prolonged recession. Typically, during a prolonged recession, the security industry is among the last industries to go into the recession and the last to come out. Just how much a security company is affected by the recession depends on how well financed the company was going into the recession and how much the vertical markets the company serves are affected by the downturn.

Banking Relationships

Trend: Banking Relationships Still Uncertain – no change from 2013 report.

When the economic downturn started about five years ago, the relationship owners of contract security companies had with their banks, for the most part, began to deteriorate. Since then, we have heard many disturbing stories about companies having to change banks because their present bank called their credit line, or otherwise informed them that come renewal time the line amount will be reduced or not be renewed. Other companies had increased borrowing costs, but remained with their present bank.

Some Contract Security Companies are Growing

Trend: Fewer Contract Security Companies Have Experienced Growth in the Past 12 Months

A few of the contract security companies are actually experiencing growth, but at a lesser pace than in prior years, as customers increase security to combat the increase in the crime rate that goes along with a financially challenging economy. Also, many of the contract security companies (especially the larger ones) are introducing new and more profitable services as a way to win new accounts or keep existing ones; such as the bundling of security services - "integrated guarding" [see page 3 on recent developments]. In fact, many of the larger companies are getting into the remote video monitoring business as a way to supplement or enhance the existing traditional standing security officer service. Some are also pursuing the background screening business, "Alert Line" services, executive protection, etc. – all as a way to diversify and get more competitive and, in a lot of instances, set themselves apart from their strongest competitor in the traditional standing contract security market.



July 2014 U.S. Contract Security Industry White Paper

Factors Causing Growth and Contraction of Revenue in the Contract Security Industry

Trend: No significant changes from July 2013 report – the two large industry reporting agencies predict 5% annual growth in the industry for the next five years, although at least one of the international security leaders predicts modest growth at a pace no greater than GDP (Gross Domestic Product)

- Growth Factors Many reports still indicate that the contract security market in the U.S. will continue to grow in the 5% range for the next five years, while some believe the growth will be a more modest figure
 - 1. Companies looking to cut costs are eliminating their in-house security program and using contract security companies. Typically, in-house security employees will have a higher pay scale due to long term tenure with the company and expensive retirement benefits. By contracting out the security function, companies are getting better trained security personnel in many cases, for less total outlay.

As mentioned earlier in this white paper, it's believed that this in-house market is presently in the \$20 Billion range. As more of the companies presently utilizing in-house security are faced with rising employment taxes and the challenges of the Affordable Care Act, it's expected that the move from in-house to contract security may dramatically increase.

- 2. During a "down economy" the crime rate increases, thus companies looking to safeguard against the increase in crime are increasing their security coverage. This is particularly evident in the city and state municipal government sector, where there's a lot of pressure from the public to provide more protection at a reduced cost.
- 3. As smaller companies have a difficult time operating due to a cut-back in security from their customers and increased line of credit costs (or banks actually terminate the credit lines), more of these companies will go out of business or sell to their larger competitors. As a case in point; a recent mass mailing our firm made to our database of contract security companies, resulted in a record number of the letters being returned with an indication that the company was "out of business". Although this does not cause growth in the overall market, it does cause a shift of the business from the small, thinly capitalized companies to the larger more financially robust regional, national or international contract security companies.



Factors Causing Contraction

- 1. Certain industries adversely affected by the downturn in the economy are closing locations, thereby eliminating the need for security once needed in those areas.
- 2. Some companies are eliminating contract security and using their own personnel to handle the security functions as a way to justify keeping the valuable employees...however, the converse of this is true in many instances as mentioned in #1 under "Growth Factors" above.
- 3. Companies adversely affected by the economy are reducing the amount spent on security and taking on the risks of leaving the plant or premises vulnerable to incidents.
- 4. Some companies are eliminating security officers entirely and replacing with electronic security; and some companies are just reducing the security force and supplementing with "integrated guarding" or other electronic security options. More on this topic under "Contract Security Personnel (Guards) vs. Electronics" on the following page.



Contract Security Personnel (Guards) vs. Electronics

Trend: Contract Security Companies are starting electronic security divisions or teaming with companies that specialize in electronic security. Customers are replacing security officers with electronic security, or enhancing security coverage by using security officers AND electronic security devices.

For several years, the owners of contract security companies have been discussing whether electronics could replace guard hours or eliminate the need for a human security officer altogether. But until lately, they have not seen this as a real threat to their business.

However, while the contract security industry has been growing in the low single digit range for the past few years, the electronics security industry has been gaining ground and has been performing much better. While there are no statistics pointing to exactly how much, if any, revenue the electronics industry has taken from the contract security industry, there is concern amongst the owners of contract security companies that this may start happening as the contract security firm's customers look at ways to trim their security budgets and/or enhance its existing security.

Many of the telecom/cablecom and internet giants such as AT&T, Verizon, Time Warner and now Google have entered the home electronics security market and there have been recent news articles indicating that others are considering this move as well – a natural progression for these conglomerates to expand their service offerings for their millions of customers. Experts in the industry are saying that this could indicate a game changing event for the electronics security business. One scenario is that they would have to partner with the existing electronics companies to handle the installations, service and response, which could actually be good for some of the existing electronics companies; while others are saying that these companies have a very large band width that takes competing in the electronics sector to a whole new level and that would be concerning.



In the past year, the following acquisitions were announced in the cablecom/telecom and other mega companies moving into the electronic residential security market:

- 1. Oplink enters home security market with DIY alarm system
- 2. <u>Polaroid gets into security surveillance</u>
- 3. January 13, 2014 Google bought Nest Labs, a manufacturer of smart thermostats and smoke alarms Some feel that this is a signal that Google may use this as a platform to offer a security product for homeowners.
- 4. On May 19, 2014 AT&T announced that it was planning to pay \$48.5 Billion for DIRECTV. Security Systems News reports AT&T as announcing that this acquisition will expand its broadband network to more than 70 million customer locations.
- 5. July 22, 2014 Security Systems News reports that Samsung may be making a home automation push with a \$200 million buy of startup SmartThings.

Of course all these acquisitions are about mega companies moving into the homes to provide bundling of services to include video and high-speed broadband that can be viewed direct or remotely through hand held devices; and some are talking immediately about video burglar and fire monitoring. The question in the minds of owners of contract security companies is: will these companies expand their services to the corporate and small business market as well, thereby taking revenues from the contract security companies? Some feel that these transactions will make the public more aware of the need for security, thus driving more business toward the already established security companies; others feel these offer cheaper and sometimes more effective security thus diverting business to the handheld monitored devices.



Mitigating the Concern

However, the above concerns are being mitigated to a large extent by the evidence that, so far, electronics have not materially taken away from the need for human security officers, but have been used as a way to enhance the overall needs for the security customers.

More and more contract security companies are getting into the video monitoring business as a way to keep the customer that's looking for this service. Those that can't afford the very large investment to get into the video monitoring business are teaming with installation and monitoring companies as a way to offer the service.

Take the case of Securitas: Securitas sold off its electronics system integration business, Niscayah, about 5 years ago, then after finding out that it did in fact enhance the contract security business, tried to buy it back. In the buy-back process it lost its chance to acquire the company when Stanley Works outbid Securitas and bought the company for \$1.2 Billion. Securitas has subsequently teamed with Convergent Technologies, a giant in the systems integration field whereby Convergent will be the electronics arm for Securitas. On June 5, 2014 Securitas made an even bolder move when it bought a 24% stake in Iverify (www.iverify.net) [See page 25 of this report].

There are many in the industry that say the electronics industry will never adversely affect the contract security officer revenues, but that the contract security officer function will form more of a "partnership" with the electronics security function – both are needed as a way to enhance effective security.

A good example of this partnering to bundle services occurred in April, 2013, when <u>U.S.</u> <u>Security Associates (a \$1.3 Billion contract security company backed financially by</u> <u>Goldman Sachs) announced that it had structured an arrangement with Stanley Security</u> <u>Systems</u> whereby the two companies would refer business to each.



A good article on this subject presented in our July, 2012 white paper report that still very much applies to what's happening today; and is worth repeating:

John Briggs, the Operations Director of First Security in London addresses the concern best in his exclusive blog at <u>infologue.com</u>; although this quote comes from a person not in the U.S. market, we feel it accurately describes the situation of humans vs. electronics in the U.S. The quote from Mr. Briggs follows:

"So how can the industry make the best use of this security mix, using both electronic and manned approaches in parallel so that they compliment each other and contribute to a safer environment? With so many different options available it is often difficult for customers to choose the best approach."

"Companies are naturally striving to achieve the best security mix through analysing the various options available to them. CCTV, for example, has the benefit of acting as a.0 deterrent as well as keeping a log of recorded surveillance. Yet at the same time companies still need a human, visible, deterrent that is able to intervene and prevent disorder on the ground."

"In our experience at First Security we have found that by adopting a combined approach, an effective, tailored solution can be achieved. There are countless examples of where this is being used to good effect."

"For instance, an automatic number plate recognition system (ANPR) placed at the entrance of a car park is able to recognise vehicles that have been registered with the police as stolen. When this happens, notification is flagged automatically to a security guard who determines where the vehicle is parked and reports this to the police for action. Awareness that a number plate recognition system is in use often acts as a deterrent."

"Equally, turnstile technology acts as a physical barrier only allowing access to those with swipe cards or tags, which are read by computer-operated detectors. However, this does not stop individuals trying to beat the system by tailgating or jumping the electronic obstacle. This is where a security guard has an important role to play; firstly by acting as a warning and also, when incidents do occur, making a judgment, confronting the individual and dealing with the situation appropriately."

"The right security solution does not have to comprise of technology alone or rely solely on manned guards. In fact, the best approach is to use both together to support and complement each other in an intelligent manner. Ultimately, an effective solution lies in creating the right balance to deliver an effective, safe and secure solution."





Margins and EBITDA

Trend: The Gross Margins are trending down due to competitive pressures as well as operating costs. EBITDA shows insignificant change for the regional and national/international companies, but a drastic negative change for the small company.

Typically, the well-run, closely-held, small to medium sized contract security company, will have better margins than its larger competitors. The reasons are:

- 1. The smaller contract security company is selling personalized service from the owner and many customers are willing to pay extra for this personalized attention.
- 2. The smaller contract security company operates in a limited geographic area or region; thereby cannot service or attract the larger customers with multi national or international sites. These "national accounts" are mostly handled by the larger national or international security companies; but the competition to win these types of customers is very intense. Therefore, the large security companies will bid these accounts at much lower margins (than the smaller companies are getting for their "local" accounts) in exchange for a larger volume of revenue, the prestige of providing security for some well-known conglomerate, or the possibility of obtaining additional sites or other types of security for this conglomerate at much higher margins once the security company gets its foot in the door.

On the following page is a chart showing the typical margins for the small, regional and national/international U.S. contract security companies – with an insignificant portion of the revenue coming from the governmental sector (typically very low margin business). There is no margin or EBITDA information published for the industry. The information was prepared based on a limited number of financial reports we examined, along with interviews with owners of contract security companies across the U.S.

The chart indicates a decrease in site level profits over the past few years of approximately 4%. We see a larger decrease in areas that have recently been unionized as unions force the company to pay union dues and mandate expensive employee benefits. The overwhelming majority of the owners of the small companies feel the margins will only get worse due primarily to competition from the larger companies. All the companies are experiencing increases in the unemployment tax rates and are anticipating an increase in workers compensation rates.



It's interesting to note that although the margins at the site level have slipped approximately 4%, EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest Taxes Depreciation and Amortization) has remained relatively steady over the past couple of years for the regional and national/international companies. This is due primarily to a lot of "belt tightening" at the home office level accomplished by being more efficient in utilizing the non-billable personnel, or eliminating altogether some non-billable personnel through investing in technology. However, the small companies are usually operating at optimum levels of overhead personnel already and do not have much room for decreasing operating costs; hence the reason we are seeing the EBITDA decreasing significantly for these smaller companies.

	(4) Small Companies	(5) Regional Companies	National/International Companies
Revenue	100%	100%	100%
Profit at site Level (1)	15 - 16%	12 - 14%	10 - 12%
Profit at Branch Level (2)		8 -9 % (6)	8%
EBITDA (3)	Break even/loss	6-7%	5-6%

Revenue, Profit and EBITDA Matrix

- 1. Site level profit is the billing to the customer less all costs assigned to the site, such as: compensation for the billable officer, wages for the dedicated non billable supervisor (if any), uniforms, employer payroll taxes, workers compensation insurance, general liability insurance, employer portion of health benefits, cost of equipment dedicated to the site, union cost, cost for non-billable roving supervisors if there are a lot of "cold start" sites, etc.
- 2. Branch Level profit is the site level profit less all the cost to operate the branch office (for companies with multiple branch offices) such as: all non-billable personnel in the branch, office lease cost, telephone, supplies, etc.
- 3. EBITDA is Earnings Before Interest Taxes Depreciation and Amortization.



- 4. Small Companies Revenues less than \$10 million; owner manages the business and has customer relationships; operates from one office. Usually inefficient in back-office operation and pays more on a per-unit cost for insurance, uniforms, etc. In addition to the previously mentioned cost increases, gross margins are slipping due to the larger companies' recent interest in the smaller accounts, which typically have higher margins. Also for the 2013/2014 reporting period, the gross margin has been even more adversely affected by the continuing rise in unemployment taxes. Adding to the gross margin erosion for the small company has been the pricing pressures from the customers and competition. Many of the smaller companies (revenues to \$50 million) are now losing customers to the larger companies on national bids, where the smaller companies can't compete.
- 5. Regional Companies Revenues \$10 \$100 million; owner less involved in customer relationships, operates multi-offices usually volume is \$5 \$10 million per office. These medium sized companies are also experiencing margin slippage due to the previously mentioned costs. Although the margins are decreasing, the EBITDA has remained relatively constant due to a lot of "belt tightening" at the administrative cost level. Some owners are saying they have cut overhead as much as they possibly can without affecting the quality of service to the customers.
- 6. National/International Companies as indicated in several places in this white paper report, many of the national/international companies are now investing heavily in electronics and technology as a way to compete in the market place. While the gross revenue line is remaining relatively flat (3 out of the top 5 companies showed no revenue growth for 2013 over 2012), the gross margins are not decreasing as much as in the past due to the move to have more volume in the higher margin security offerings (i.e.; systems integration, video monitoring, "integrated guarding", etc.).

The Branch Level profit can be much lower for regional companies with many small offices in areas with an insufficient volume to justify the branch office overhead necessary to service the volume. This is often found in companies that are expanding through entering new markets, or having to maintain a support office to service a large account with multiple locations.





Merger and Acquisition Activity

Primary Activity for Calendar Year 2013 Except Where Noted

We're calling 2013 a "ho-hum" year for merger and acquisition activity in the guarding and electronics security industry; not only here in the United States, but also around the world. Based on the small number of acquisitions/mergers for the first half of 2014, it appears that the 2014 year will be an insignificant year for M&A as well.

Last year, we reported robust acquisition activity for 2012 with an increase of worldwide transactions of 52% over the 2011 year and 74% over 2010. However, in 2013, the overall acquisition activity slipped almost 25% over the 2012 year, yet still somewhat ahead of 2011 and 2010. The first half of 2014 indicated a 50% decrease in the number of transactions when compared to the same time period for 2013.

HOW WE FIND THE COMPLETED TRANSACTIONS

As a way of staying abreast of what's happening in the buying and selling of security companies throughout the world, our firm is constantly searching the internet, reviewing security publications and pouring over annual reports looking for announcements relating to completed sale transactions. We also subscribe to several news release services that e-mail us when a transaction has occurred or is about to close; and we are constantly talking with owners of companies who have their pulse on what's happening in the industry. This year we found hundreds of transactions for security related companies, however, we only tracked (and posted to our website) the ANNOUNCED activity in the contract security (guarding), central station alarm, "plain vanilla" systems integration and certain other sectors such as armored car company sale transactions. Also, we recognize that there are many smaller "silent" transactions that were not announced or announced on some obscure reporting service, therefore will not be included in the charts that follow.

We invite you to view the full details of these ANNOUNCED transactions in the "World Transactions" section of our website at www.roberthperry.com; then visit the site often to find out what's currently going on in mergers & acquisitions for 2014.



THE TOP STORIES IN THE MERGER AND ACQUISITION ACTIVITY AROUND THE WORLD, AND PARTICULARLY IN THE U.S. (Sellers with revenues over U.S. \$50 million) for the twelve-month period beginning on August 01, 2013 and ending July 31, 2014

Below is a list of some of the significant *announced* transactions – pertaining mostly to the contract security and electronics sector of the security industry. The list includes foreign as well as domestic transactions for international companies with a significant U.S. presence. Although security company giants Securitas and G4S were active in making acquisitions; they were not as active as in past years and their acquisition concentration remains primarily in the emerging markets rather than the U.S.

Two Transactions for U.S. Based Contract Security Companies (compared to five transactions in 2012/2013 twelve-month time period:

- *February 11, 2014 Universal Protection Service acquires International Security* <u>Management Group, Inc.</u>
- November 26, 2013 Universal Protection Service announced that they have acquired IPC International

Four Transactions for Foreign Based Contract Security Companies (also four transactions in 2012/2013 twelve month time period):

- July 17, 2014 <u>G4S sold G4S Sweden to Sector Alarm for GBP 37.4 million</u> (approx. U.S. \$64 million). G4S Sweden provided manned guarding security and security systems to customers across Sweden.
- March 03, 2014 Carlyle Group agrees to acquire ADT Korea from Tyco for U.S. \$1.9 Billion. ADT Korea has approximately 7,500 employees, generates approximately U.S. \$600 million revenue with approximately U.S. \$180 million in EBITDA – a selling price of approximately 10 times EBITDA.



- December 16, 2013 Prosegur acquired Chubb Security Services in Australia, a company specializing in the cash logistics and ATM's operation and servicing sector. The purchase price was approximately EUR 95 million (U.S. \$128 million) revenues were EUR 88 million (U.S. \$119 million).
- August 28, 2013 <u>G4S announces that it has reached an agreement with Garda</u> <u>World, to sell G4S Cash Solutions (Canada) Limited. (On January 17, 2014, G4S</u> announced the completed acquisition)

Two Transactions for US Electronics Security Companies (compared to nine transactions in 2012/2013 twelve month time period):

- June 05, 2014 Securitas buys 24% stake in IVERIFY. This acquisition underscores Securitas' announcement to make a concentrated move into the electronics security and "integrated guarding".
- October 09, 2013 SAFE president and CEO Paul Sargenti reports that the company has more than doubled in size within the last year and recently acquired 6,000 additional accounts from Pinnacle Security.

One Foreign Electronics Security Company Transaction (Also one transaction in 2012/2013 twelve month time period):

• July 08, 2014 – <u>ADT acquires Reliance Protectron, Inc. for CD \$ 555 million</u> (approx. U.S. \$500 million).



OVERVIEW OF WORLDWIDE ANNOUNCED COMPLETED TRANSACTIONS (For Twelve Months Ended on December 31, 2013)

There were 93 ANNOUNCED transactions for 2013, compared to 113 in 2012 and 74 in 2011. The international companies, who were the active buyers in previous years, were again mostly on the sidelines for guarding company transactions. Securitas bought a few very small companies in Europe, with G4S not making any acquisition announcements in the guarding industry anywhere in the world for 2013. In fact, G4S was in the divesting mode for 2013, as evidenced by the sale of its Canadian cash-in-transit business. As for the guarding industry in the United States, Universal Protection was, once again, very active and accounted for most of the 15 total transactions.

Announced				
Worldwide Transactions	2010	2011	2012	2013
Guarding	31	25	38	22
Alarm Monitoring	15	31	52	43
Systems Integration	14	13	15	19
Other - Investigative, Armored Car, etc.	5	5	8	9
Total Announced Transactions	65	74	113	93

2010 - 2013 Industry Acquisition Overview by Sectors



Country	Guard	Alarm Monitoring	Systems Integration	Other	TOTAL
Australia	1			1	2
Canada	1	1	1	1	4
China			1		1
Croatia			1		1
Denmark	1				1
Germany	1			1	2
India	1				1
Malaysia			1		1
Netherlands	1				1
South Africa		1			1
United Kingdom	1		1	1	3
United States	15	40	14	5	74
Uruguay		1			1
TOTALS	22	43	19	9	93

2013 Industry Acquisitions by Country

2010 - 2013 Guard Transactions Only - Comparing U.S. to Worldwide Totals

History of Announced		
Guard Transactions	us	Worldwide
2010	14	31
2011	8	25
2012	22	38
2013	15	22



2013 U.S. Guarding Acquisitions by Quarter



WHY THE SLOWDOWN IN ACQUISITION ACTIVITY FOR 2013?

For guarding and electronic security company owners, 2012 was the ideal year to sell in order to take advantage of the lower capital gains tax rates. The Federal long term capital gains tax rate was 15% for 2012, but increased to 20% in 2013, with an additional 3.8% investment income tax some tax advisers are saying might apply to the sale of a business. This made the owners that were thinking about selling in the near future (maybe 2013?) decide to accelerate their plans and sell in 2012. This mindset to sell sooner rather than later was enhanced by the proposed legislation and ongoing discussions in Washington to increase taxes in order to deal with the huge national debt.

As explained in the following section - "PREDICTIONS FOR 2014", the mega companies like Securitas and G4S dramatically curtailed their acquisition activity in order to implement an organic growth strategy.

Also, the year 2012 was when many owners started to become more aware of the perils of the Affordable Care Act ("Obamacare") and how it negatively affected the security industry - especially the labor intensive contract guarding sector. The attempt to repeal the ACA did not go through, which made many concerned owners accelerate the sale of their companies.



WHAT WILL THE SECOND HALF OF 2014 AND 2015 BRING TO THE MERGER AND ACQUISITION MARKETPLACE?

As for the public international security companies, we don't see much activity in buying plain vanilla guarding companies from these mega conglomerates in the near future anywhere in the world. They are drastically curtailing, or stopping altogether, their buying activities. Here's what the CEO's of Securitas and G4S are saying about their acquisition plans:

Excerpt from <u>Securitas press release December 05, 2013</u> CEO, Alf Goransson stated ... Securitas is well positioned to take advantage of the paradigm shift taking place in the security industry. Given the current market dynamics and a gradual increase in the use of technology in security solutions, the security markets in Europe and North America have been growing at the same pace as GDP for the past few years'' He goes on to say, ''... the capital expenditure needed to increase the Group's sales of security solutions will be offset by a slower rate of acquisitions ...''.

Ashley Almanza, G4S's new CEO, made several similar statements in 2013 as he leads G4S away from growing through acquisitions and concentrating on planned organic growth.

As the large international companies take a breather from acquisitions and focus on organic growth, the Private Equity Groups (PEG's) ramp up their efforts to grow through buying more companies. The security companies owned, in the majority, by the PEG's are getting pressured to grow so they can put their huge stash of idle cash to work. They're hungry for acquisitions, but are not letting their quest to grow through acquisitions get ahead of their good judgment on the multiples they are willing to pay. Although the multiples have increased over the last couple of years, the gap between what owners are expecting in a sale and what buyers are willing to pay is still keeping many owners from putting their company on the market. They don't have to sell and the return on what they would get from the sale proceeds is still at an all-time low.

At the time of publishing this July 2014 white paper, there are rumors floating around the marketplace that there may be a couple of large U.S. Contract Security companies sold by the end of 2014 – The buyers may be industry players or new Private Equity Groups entering the marketplace.



Private Equity Groups Making Investments in the Contract Security Industry

So why are Private Equity Groups still considering making acquisitions in the contract security market? Collectively, the Private Equity Groups raised a record amount of commitments during the years 2005 – 2007 and because of the downturn in the economy they're behind on putting these funds to work for their investors. Some estimate the size of the idle cash to be several hundred billion dollars. The Private Equity Groups are now scrambling around to find viable investments that will give their investors an attractive return and are looking to the security industry as investment possibilities. Also, the interest rates for acquisitions at a rapid pace. However, in spite of this pent up demand to put the cash to work and the low interest rates, only a few Private Equity Groups are interested in investing in contract security companies for reasons set forth later in this report.

There are however, a number of Private Equity Groups interested in the high margin side of the security sector (i.e.; biometrics, electronic security, etc.) and some are looking at large contract security companies (even though the industry is expected to grow at an "unexciting" rate of around 5% per year) as a platform from which to build for the next 5 years; then sell at the end of the 10-year life of the fund. There are presently several large privately held contract security companies "ripe" to be acquired by Private Equity Groups; the latest large transaction was the acquisition of Wind Point Partners interest in U.S. Security (now a \$1.3 Billion company) by Goldman Sachs in July of 2011.



Some well-known Private Equity Groups presently with significant investments in the contract security industry are:

- *The Blackstone Group* (<u>www.blackstone.com</u>) has a significant investment in AlliedBarton (<u>www.alliedbarton.com</u>) approx. \$1.9 Billion in annual revenue.
- Goldman Sachs (www.goldmansachs.com) has a significant investment in U.S. Security Associates (www.ussecurityassociates.com) - approx. \$1.3 Billion in annual revenue. Goldman Sachs purchased WindPoint Partners' ownership on July 29, 2011.
- LaSalle Capital (www.lasallecapitalgroup.com) started United American Security LLC (www.unitedamericansecurity.com) in April 2010, through the simultaneous purchase of 3 existing companies – Industrial Security, Inc., Leonard Security Services, Inc. and Eagle Security, Inc; and has since grown to be a significant player in the contract security industry through several "tuck-in" acquisitions.
- *ZS Fund LLP* (<u>www.zsfundlp.com</u>) entered the contract security in December 2012 with a major investment in SOS Security (<u>www.sossecurity.com</u>)

As mentioned earlier, Private Equity Groups typically see a lower return on their initial investment in the industry since they do not have the advantage of synergistic savings when making this initial acquisition. However, as the groups make future acquisitions that are "fold-ins" to their existing flagship portfolio company, the returns are much more attractive. When all the investments are averaged, the return on the initial purchase becomes much higher.

The positive aspects of the contract security industry for Private Equity Groups:

- 1. There are still many consolidating opportunities left for Private Equity Groups wanting to get large in the industry through a series of acquisitions. [See previous chart of "Composition by Company Size"] Typically, the investment group will have to pay around 8 10 times (or even higher) the *sellers*' adjusted EBITDA to get into the business, then make "fold-in" acquisitions for EBITDA multiples (from the buyer's pro-forma profit calculation) in the 5-6 range (and sometimes much lower).
- 2. The multiples for the resale of the companies when the investment groups make their exit have been, and still are, very attractive.
- 3. The contract security industry, in terms of future growth prospects, is much better than the general population of investment opportunities.



The negative aspects of the contract security industry for Private Equity Groups:

- 1. **Target for lawsuits:** Since the contract security companies are labor intensive, they are prime targets for workers compensation, employee harassment, equal opportunity workers violations and general third party claims (theft, harassment, destruction of premises, accidents, etc.).
- 2. **Labor intensive:** Frequent target for unions, unemployment law changes, low paid employees, constant changing training and hiring requirements etc.
- 3. Low barrier to entry: Presently the states mandate the laws required to enter the security guard business and in some states all that is required is a \$40 business license.
- 4. **"Perceived" Bad Reputation:** The contract security industry in the U.S., unlike its counterparts in other parts of the world, has a reputation of getting its work force from the ranks of personnel that do not qualify for other industries. It's perceived as a low pay/high labor turnover, poorly managed industry, resulting in a "not so favorable" industry in which to invest. However, as mentioned earlier in this white paper, one of the reasons contract security companies get bad publicity is because they are larger targets than the public security providers having over twice as many personnel as the public police forces.




Selling Prices for Large Contract Security Company Transactions

The following summarizes the large *announced* transactions for the past 15 years for U.S. sellers offering primarily contract security officer (guarding) services. Note that there's no consistency in reporting the assumption of long-term debt when the companies made the announcement, thereby producing somewhat misleading conclusions on the total enterprise value price for some of the transactions. In some cases – as in the Cognisa/U.S. Security transaction – part of the purchase price was paid based on account retention post-closing and the amount of the post-closing payment was not announced.

Company Sold	Buyer	Revenue	EBITDA	Price	Price as I Revenue	
1999 Pinkertons	Securitas	\$1B	\$33M	\$407M	40%	12.3x
2000 Burns	Securitas	\$1.5B	\$65M	\$576M	38%	8.9x
2002 Wackenhut Vance International	Group4/Falck SPX	\$2.8B \$95M	\$73M N/A	\$570M \$67M	20% 84%	7.8x N/A
2003 Allied Security	MacAndrews & Forbes	\$500M+	N/A	\$250M+	50%	N/A
2005 Cognisa	U.S. Security Associates	\$100M	N/A	\$40M	40%	N/A
2006 Vance International Initial Security	Garda World AlliedBarton	\$155M \$240M	N/A N/A	\$67.2 M \$73.6M	43% 31%	N/A N/A
2008 AlliedBarton Andrews International	Blackstone Group Audax Gorup	\$1.5B \$225M	N/A N/A	\$750M \$161M	50% 72%	N/A N/A
2009 Vance International	Andrews International	\$128M	\$4.5M	\$44.25M	35%	9.8x
2010 (1) Paragon Systems, Inc.	Pinkertons Government Svcs	\$140M	N/A	\$34.5M	25%	N/A
2011 (1) Security Consultants Group (2) U.S. Security Associates, Inc.	Paragon Systems, Inc. Goldman Sachs	\$106M \$765M	N/A N/A	\$22M N/A	21% N/A	N/A N/A
2012 (3) Andrews International	U.S. Security Associates, Inc.	\$350M	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
2013 (4) IPC International	Universal Protection Services	\$130M	N/A	\$24M	N/A	N/A

N/A = not provided in the announcement



- (1) These are the only announced transactions for a major provider of security services to the Federal Government. Typically, the margins for Federal government accounts are less than traditional commercial accounts, thus the selling multiple as a percent of revenue is less than the industry average for traditional commercial accounts.
- (2) WindPoint Partners sold its equity portion to Goldman Sachs. The revenue amount shown is from the July 2011 issue of The Security Letter.
- (3) This transaction was announced as a merger.
- (4) IPC was sold out of Chapter 7 Bankruptcy. Universal purchased the accounts and goodwill; and assumed certain contingent liabilities.

As can be concluded from the previous analysis, most of the large announced transactions indicated purchase price values in the 8 - 10 times EBITDA range; or 40% of annual revenues (except in the case of Universal's purchase of IPC, which was bought out of Chapter 7 bankruptcy and was not an "enterprise value" purchase). Many of the transactions have involved a larger security company buying its competitor, or in the case of Securitas buying Pinkerton, APS, Burns and First Security, the purchase was a way to get large in the U.S. market quickly. The announcements do not indicate what the buyer's return on the investment was after considering consolidating advantages, elimination of redundant costs, etc.

In the case of Private Equity Groups buying a large contract security company as a way to enter the market, the multiples paid were at least as high as what the industry buyers were paying, even though the PEG'S return on investment in the short term was not as attractive as the industry buyers were enjoying. However, the PEG's had to be competitive in the bidding process for the initial buy. As the PEG's made future acquisitions through the flagship company, their returns became a lot more attractive, especially if the acquired company folded into the flagship company's operations – thereby through averaging the prices paid for the multiple purchases, the return on the initial purchase became a lot more attractive.



Selling Prices for Small Contract Security Company Transactions

Selling Multiples

The prices being paid for the smaller companies over the past two years, expressed as a percentage of annual revenue, are about the same as the larger transactions; but in some cases, for strategic acquisitions in this 2013/2014 reporting period, are much higher. The multiples of the **sellers'** reported EBITDA are higher for the smaller transactions than the larger transactions, since the buyers in the contract security industry give the seller credit for the redundant cost savings that benefit the buyer in the transaction.

For many years, and unfortunately even today, many owners thinking about selling are still using the traditional "street formulas" as a way to estimate the eventual selling price of the company. These "street formulas" use multiples of gross units (percentages of gross annual revenue or multiples of gross monthly billing), irrespective of the actual earning potential of the company, as a way to put an estimated value on the company. However, these street formulas usually result in the company being grossly over-priced or, worse yet, under-valued. When we look at the transactions we've managed over the past few years for companies with volumes between \$5 million and \$150 million, the selling multiples, as a percentage of annual revenue, were as low as 20% to as high as 50% of revenue, for just the accounts (i.e.; if the buyer purchases the balance sheet items, these items are added to the price based on the balance sheet carrying value) – thereby proving the fallacy of valuing the company on gross units.

In fact, the "street formulas" were never used by the experienced buyers. These buyers use the profit at the account site level (which determines the buyers' economic return on the acquisition), along with the attractiveness of the accounts, quality of management going with the sale, geographic location of the accounts – and several other characteristics important to buyer prospects.



The Affordable Care Act and the Anticipated Valuation of Selling Companies

TREND: Unchanged since the July 2013 report. Penalties for not providing qualified and affordable health coverage to eligible employees extended to January 01, 2015 (from January 01, 2014)

The question on the minds of owners thinking about selling today is: How is the Affordable Care Act going to affect the value of my company? If the seller has been preparing the customers for an increase in billing rates to take care of the additional healthcare costs, then the selling value of the company should not be negatively impacted. However, if there is an increase in the number of quality companies going on the market, the market may change to be more buyer favorable; in which case, the values of even the quality companies may diminish. Since there will be more companies on the market, the buyers can better "pick and choose" who they want to buy and have more influence in dictating the price. As of the writing of this white paper, the effect of the Affordable Care Act on the sale of contract security companies is still very uncertain, so we cannot predict how this Act will affect the sale of companies, if at all.



It's Still a Seller's Market

Trend: Seller's multiples reached an unprecedented high for the July 2014 reporting year as buyers increased their offers in order to get the attention of owners of quality contract security companies.

The large contract security companies, which are usually the most generous on pricing, need to work hard to replace the business lost in the economic downturn – shareholders don't like to see decline in revenues even in a challenging economy. But these large companies are finding it difficult to maintain its 5% - 8% net growth through internal sales alone. A \$500 million company with a 5% customer attrition rate has to grow 10% - \$50 million - just to maintain a 5% overall net growth. Therefore they are looking to acquisitions to make up what they can't accomplish through their internal sales efforts - the larger the company, the more the need to make the smaller, tuck-in acquisitions as a way to keep the shareholders happy. In order to attract the attention of owners of attractive target companies they have to be generous in their offers.

Also, another reason the larger companies are buying and paying generous prices is that they presently have an abundance of cash on their balance sheet that they need to put to work and buying the smaller companies – with gross margins that tend to be 5% - 7% higher than the buyer's – is the most prudent use of this cash. However, while the generous buyers are still very active in making acquisitions, they are doing so with cautious optimism. Many are concerned that they need to preserve more of this idle cash to hedge against the uncertainness in the economy today, such as: the new healthcare bill, rising operating costs and loss of customers.

How long will the market be in the Sellers' favor?

Do the buyers' uncertainness signal a slow-down in the acquisition activity? Some say yes, while some say the present economic climate may spur an increase in acquisitions as more and more "quality" companies come on the market. Do we see a "buyers' market" on the horizon?



Factors Driving Owners to Sell in Today's Market

Trend: Higher Operating Costs, Increased Competition and More Attractive Multiples putting owners in selling mode.

- 1. The cost of implementing the New Healthcare Bill (Affordable Care Act) -While it's unknown what the exact impact this bill will have on the contract security market, most owners think it will definitely mean less profits and loss of customers or billable hours. [See page 43 under "Challenges and Opportunities for Owners of Contract Security Companies"]
- 2. Small to medium sized companies are losing business to the national account providers This trend has been going on for several years and, according to the owners of many of these companies, the situation is getting worse. The large, well-financed, companies are now going after the smaller customers that tend to have better margins. Previously, these customers were too small to be a target for these large security providers. This loss of business is causing the owners of the smaller companies to seriously think about selling before more business is lost to the large national companies.
- 3. **Possible lower valuations later -** Many owners feel that the challenges of the future will mean more companies will be put on the market, thereby causing a decrease in the valuations for a future sale.
- 4. **Probable increase in taxes** [See page 44 under "Challenges and Opportunities for Owners of Contract Security Companies"]
- 5. **Unionization** [See page 44 under "Challenges and Opportunities for Owners of Contract Security Companies"]



- 6. Not being able or willing to keep up with the changes needed to stay competitive in today's market. As we mentioned in the section on margins, the margin at the site level is dropping for most companies whether small, medium or large, these companies are compensating by getting more efficient below the site level line. They are reducing clerical labor and non-billable overtime percentages by investing in technology that enables them to run the company with less people and at the same time be more efficient. However, the technology costs money and many owners today, especially those getting close to retirement age, just aren't willing to make the investment that doesn't give an immediate return. Also, the training, tax, and licensing laws are getting much more complicated, which in some cases have required an investment in outside consultants which is another new expense; not to mention the expense that will be associated with complying with the new Affordable Care Act.
- 7. Original owners reaching retirement age. Many contract security companies today were started 30 40 years ago, when the trend to outsource security was getting started in a big way. These owners are now reaching retirement age and are looking to sell their business.



Why Owners Are Not Rushing to Put the Company on the Market, in Spite of Shrinking Margins and Revenue

Trend: Basically unchanged since our July 2013 report

In <u>Volume 15, No. 1 of our issue of Notebook of Ideas for Divestitures of Security</u> <u>Guard Companies</u>, we mention four reasons owners are not putting their company up for sale now:

- 1. **Owners consider the industry recession proof:** contract security company owners see continuing activity in the market, so they are taking a "wait and see" approach to selling, thinking that buyers will still be there when they get ready to sell.
- 2. Decline in alternative investment opportunities: Before the recent economic downturn raised its ugly head, many sellers of contract security companies made more money from the funds they invested from the sale of the company than they made while owning and operating the company. However, with the dramatic drop in real estate values, and money markets and the stock market declining so dramatically, doing this safely and profitably in the current economic climate would be very difficult.
- 3. **Owners have not yet "tested" their credit lines:** Many of the more fortunate contract security companies established or renewed its credit lines back when the banks were eager to please and more anxious to lend money, and the credit line will not come up for renewal for several more years. Most are still safe with their loan terms and have not actually talked with their bank about what to expect come renewal time. They feel reasonably, but cautiously, optimistic that their banks will continue to support their financial needs.
- 4. Some companies have already lost value: Some of the contract security companies have, in fact, already felt the effects of this challenging economy and have lost value not because the selling multiples have gone down, but because the company has lost valuable and profitable revenue. The owners do not want to have to sell for a reduced price because they still have high expectations, so they are waiting for the economy to turn around before they think seriously about selling.



OUTLOOK

Challenges and Opportunities for Owners of Contract Security Companies

TREND: In the past 12 months, there have been many developments that have been announced that will, or may, take place in the coming years that could have a dramatic effect on owners of private security companies. Many of these developments are prompting the owners to seriously consider selling their company in 2014 or 2015, before these expensive provisions (taxes and certain ACA regulations) take effect:

CHALLENGES:

New Healthcare Bill (Affordable Care Act) and the Individual Mandate

On June 28, 2012, the U.S. Supreme Court upheld the Affordable Care Act, which was not the decision owners of contract security companies had been waiting to hear – it was "bad news" for this labor intensive industry. The U.S. Supreme Court ruled that the "Individual Mandate" provision of the Act was a tax (and not a penalty) therefore, for the most part, the Act was constitutional.

Up until the ruling, most owners were in a hold pattern on taking any action to adhere to the ACA provisions. Now owners are scrambling around trying to find out just how the ruling affects their business and what they need to do to get it in place. In May of 2013, Congress passed a rule extending the dreaded penalties for not complying with the act to January 01, 2015 (from January 01, 2014). Although this gave owners some breathing room and more time to plan what they are going to do; some see this as just "kicking the inevitable further down the road". And to make matters worse, as of the writing of this white paper, there has not been any clear guidance issued as to how the Act will work particularly the precise requirements of an "Affordable Qualified Plan" - what companies employing more than 50 people must offer their employees or pay a large per employee penalty. The general consensus is that it will certainly increase operating costs. Many owners say they will be able to pass all or part of this cost increase on to their customers; but they are saying this with reservation. While some owners started putting a clause in their customer contracts a couple of years ago that gives them the right to pass this additional cost along in the form of higher billing rates, they readily admit that some customers cannot, or will not, accept the price increase. This will result in lost customers, decrease in billing hours; or decrease in the security company's earnings, in the case where the security company has to absorb the additional cost.



The few optimistic thinkers are saying the ACA will create a level playing field when time comes to bid on a customer contract. In the past, the company that furnished its employees with an expensive health care plan had a difficult time competing with the company that did not provide an expensive plan, or provided no plan at all. With all the bidders having to have an expensive health insurance plan in place, for the most part the bidding companies are now working with the same cost structure.

Further Unionization of the Contract Security Industry

Trend: no change from July 2013 white paper report

The "Security Letter" reports in its July 2014 issue that 8% of the contract security labor force is represented by some Labor Union.

In early 2010, President Obama, in a recess appointment, appointed a SEIU lawyer to head up the National Labor Relations Board. This, coupled with several news articles surrounding the SEIU's connection to the White House (the frequent visits by SEIU executives and the large financial support to President Obama's election campaign), gave contract security company owners great concern over the gaining strength and influence of the unions and their continuing heavy handed approach to unionization. Recent reports indicate the unions' attempt to establish union work forces through a "card check" procedure (making it much easier for the unions to get certified), as well as allow part time employees to join the union and the use of corporate e-mails for organization efforts.

Increase in Federal Income, Capital Gains and Inheritance Taxes

Trend: Capital gains taxes increased from 15% to 20% and expected to go higher.

Because of the heavy Federal deficit, the Federal Government is looking for ways to bring more money back into its coffers. Unfortunately, the business owners and the high earners will be paying its "unfair" share of helping restore the treasury. In January of 2013, the capital gains rate was increased from 15% to 20%, which has already adversely affected owners selling their company. But there are rumors that another change may be coming that will make it even more expensive to sell.

In a recent article our firm published on this subject, before the tax increased from 15% to 20%, we gave examples of how much the worth of a company had to increase for an owner to net the same after taxes on a future sale as it would net had the company been sold in 2012.



Higher Unemployment and Other Taxes

Owners of large and small companies are experiencing very large increases in unemployment taxes as a result of the U.S. high unemployment rates – which presently do not have any significant improvements predicted for the near future. As state unemployment funds continue to diminish, the rates will continue to rise – already approaching double digits in some states.

Also, many municipalities are trying to pass legislation to tax services (not presently subject to sales tax) in an effort to make up for the diminishing tax based revenue resulting from the diminishing economy. This sales tax is usually passed on to the customer contracting for the security, but it definitely impacts the customer's cost of security, which in turn puts pressure on the customer to ask for price concessions from the security service provider.

OPPORTUNITIES:

Some owners see opportunities ahead. They are still experiencing growth and have positioned their company to "deal" with the challenges:

- New Healthcare Bill creates a level playing field in the bidding process. Up until now, when several companies were bidding on new business; many of the bidders had very expensive healthcare plans and couldn't compete on the cost structure against the companies that were self-insured, or did not provide and/or pay for the employees insurance. With the passage of the Bill, many of the companies that have been disadvantaged in the bidding process feel that this passage will help them win more new accounts as the playing field for new business is now more leveled. (See more discussion under "Challenges" above). However, there is still a concern among many owners of small contract security companies that their larger competitors will be buying insurance at cheaper rates because they will be buying in larger volumes or may even be self- insuring.
- 2. Many owners feel that the "in-house" security market may now open up as a result of the New Healthcare Bill and overall cost increases in employing workers especially workers that have been with the company for a long time.

Below are some recent examples of municipalities looking for ways to contain cost as it's faced with having to raise rates to its customers

• <u>A recent article in the "Security Director News"</u> tells about the Tennessee Valley Authority laying off 61 police officers for more technology and contact "guards". This came as a cost saving strategy as the TVA struggled with the inevitable need to raise the rates to its customers.



- <u>The November 2, 2011 issue of the "Security Director News"</u> describes two municipalities looking at contract security as a way to save taxpayer monies. Admittedly, the larger security companies will benefit more from the "Healthcare" reason to move from "in-house" to contract security because the larger companies can afford the less expensive self-insured plans.
- 3. Some of the larger regional companies have recently improved their credit lines to open up a source of borrowings for small, tuck-in acquisitions. As companies that have not prepared themselves to handle the "challenges" come on the market, these well-funded regional companies may be in the position to make a few acquisitions at prices more favorable to the buyer.
- 4. <u>Recent move to privatize security screening at airports</u> could create a large market not available to most contract security companies since the TSA was formed after the events of 9/11. A November 2012 article in Security Info Watch highlighted this trend.



References:

Page 3:

Securitas.com."Securitas Full Year Report January – December 2013". <u>http://www.securitas.com/en/News/Press-Releases/2014/Securitas-AB-Full-Year-Report-JanuaryDecember-2013/</u>. February 20, 2014

Entwistle, Martha. "Securitas gets into electronic security; Iverify doubles in size". <u>http://www.securitysystemsnews.com/blog/securitas-gets-electronic-security-iverify-doubles-size?eid=191560914&bid=877388</u>. June 4, 2014

Pfeifle, L. Samuel. "G4S buys Adesta". <u>http://www.securitysystemsnews.com/article/g4s-buys-adesta</u>. November 17, 2009

Page 4:

G4S.com. "G4S takes on a new recruit – Bob, the autonomous robot". http://www.g4s.com/en/Media%20Centre/News/2014/06/17/Bob%20the%20autonomous%20robot/.as px. June 17, 2014

Entwistle, Martha. "Stanley partners with guard company U.S. Security Associates". <u>http://www.securitysystemsnews.com/article/stanley-partners-guard-company-us-security-associates</u>. April 22, 2013

Kothe, Leif. "Viewpoint, AlliedBarton team up on 'blended solution' ". <u>http://www.securitysystemsnews.com/article/viewpoint-alliedbarton-team-blended-solution</u>. November 13, 2013

Canfield, Amy. "Could drones be new force multiplier for physical security?". <u>http://securitydirectornews.com/general-news/could-drones-be-new-force-multiplier-physical-security</u>. July 14, 2014

Nacelewicz, Tess. "Possible Protection 1 buyers: PE firm, telecom or cableco". <u>http://www.securitysystemsnews.com/article/possible-protection-1-buyers-pe-firm-telecom-or-cableco</u>. August 6, 2014

Bosch, Rodney. "Update: Protection 1 Ownership Is Weighing a Public Offering". <u>http://www.securitysales.com/article/update_protection_1_ownership_is_weighing_a_public_offering</u>? <u>utm_source=newsletter&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=enewsthursday</u>. August 6, 2014

Page 8

McCrie, Robert. The Security Letter 166 E. 96th Street, NY, NY 10128. <u>rmccrie@verizon.net</u>. July 2014

Page 9:

G4S.com. "Proposed Divestment of G4S Government Solutions, Inc. (USA)";. http://www.g4s.com/en/Investors/News%20and%20Presentations/Announcements/2013/03/05/US%2 0Government%20Solutions/. March 5, 2013

Page 15:

Griffin, Joel. "Oplink enters home security market with DIY alarm system". <u>http://www.securityinfowatch.com/article/11218032/oplink-security-offers-do-it-yourself-home-security-system-kits</u>. October 31, 2013

Entwistle, Martha. "Polaroid gets into security surveillance". <u>http://securitydirectornews.com/vendors/polaroid-gets-security-surveillance</u>. May 29, 2013

Nacelewicz, Tess. "Sizing up Google's smart play home". http://www.securitysystemsnews.com/article/sizing-google-s-smart-home-play. January 29, 2014

Nacelewicz, Tess. "AT&T to buy DirecTV for \$48.5b". <u>http://www.securitysystemsnews.com/article/att-buy-directv-485b</u>. May 19, 2014

Nacelewicz, Tess. "Another tech giant to make a \$200m move into the connected home?". <u>http://www.securitysystemsnews.com/blog/another-tech-giant-making-200m-move-connected-home</u>. July 22, 2014

Page 16:

Entwistle, Martha. "Stanley partners with guard company U.S. Security Associates". <u>http://securitysystemsnews.com/article/stanley-partners-guard-company-us-security-associates</u>. April 22, 2013

Page 24:

Digitaljournal.com. "Universal Protection Service acquires International Security Management Group, Inc.". <u>http://www.digitaljournal.com/pr/1732555</u>. February 11, 2014

Broadwayworld.com. "Universal Protection Service Acquires IPC International". <u>http://www.broadwayworld.com/bwwgeeks/article/Universal-Protection-Service-Acquires-IPC-International-20131126#.U-u6XGNR8cQ</u>. November 26, 2014

Rttnews.com. "G4S To Sell G4S Sweden To Sector Alarm For SEK 438 Mln - Quick Facts". <u>http://www.rttnews.com/2350968/g4s-to-sell-g4s-sweden-to-sector-alarm-for-sek-438-mln-quick-facts.aspx</u>. July 17, 2014 Minchom, Clive. "Carlyle Group agrees to acquire ADT Korea from Tyco for U.S. \$1.9 Billion". <u>http://jewishbusinessnews.com/2014/03/03/carlyle-group-agrees-to-acquire-adt-korea-from-tyco-in-1-9-billion-deal/</u>. March 3, 2014

Page 25

Prosegur.com. "Prosegur starts business in Australia with the acquisition of one of the leading companies in cash logistics". <u>http://www.prosegur.com/corpen/Press-Room/Press-Releases/PRWEBC024442</u>. December 16, 2013

G4S.com. "G4S completes sale of Canadian Cash Solutions business". http://www.g4s.com/en/Media%20Centre/News/2014/01/17/Canadian%20Sale/. January 17, 2014

Entwistle, Martha. "Securitas gets into electronic security; Iverify doubles in size". <u>http://www.securitysystemsnews.com/blog/securitas-gets-electronic-security-iverify-doubles-size?eid=191560914&bid=877388</u>. June 4, 2014

Nacelewicz, Tess. "SAFE security buys more Pinnacle accounts, doubles in size". <u>http://www.securitysystemsnews.com/article/safe-security-buys-more-pinnacle-accounts-doubles-size</u>. October 9, 2013

"ADT Closes Acquisition of Reliance Protectron, Inc.". <u>http://online.wsj.com/article/PR-CO-20140708-909820.html</u>. July 08, 2014

Page 26

G4S.com. "G4S completes sale of Canadian Cash Solutions business". http://www.g4s.com/en/Media%20Centre/News/2014/01/17/Canadian%20Sale/. January 17, 2014

Page 29

Securitas.com. "Paradigm shift in the security industry". <u>http://www.securitas.com/en/News/Press-Releases/2013/Paradigm-shift-in-the-security-industry/</u>. December 5, 2013

Page 45

Richardson, Whit. "Energy co. lays off 61 police officers for more technology and contract guards". <u>http://www.securitydirectornews.com/commercial-and-enterprise/energy-co-lays-61-police-officers-more-technology-and-contract-guards</u>. February 22, 2012

Page 46

Richardson, Whit. "Swapping sworn police for security guards: Is it a fair trade?" <u>http://www.securitydirectornews.com/editors-notes/swapping-sworn-police-security-guards-it-fair-trade</u>. October 28, 2011

Richardson, Whit. "New law could make it easier for airports to privatize security screening". <u>http://www.securitydirectornews.com/public-sector/new-law-could-make-it-easier-airports-privatize-security-screening</u>. February 12, 2012



ABOUT ROBERT H. PERRY & ASSOCIATES, INCORPORATED:

We initiate and manage the sale of privately-held security companies. Since 1977, we have represented approximately 200 owners located throughout North and South America, Western Europe, the Caribbean, South Africa, and the Middle East.

ROBERT H. PERRY

 \mathcal{R} Associates, Incorporated

P.O. Box 67 (zip 27402) 301 N. Elm Street, Suite 710 Greensboro, NC 27401 (U.S.A.) Tel: 336.272.2266 • Fax: 336.272.1142 rhpa@roberthperry.com • www.roberthperry.com

The information throughout this report does not render legal, accounting or tax advice. Neither Robert H. Perry & Associates, Incorporated nor its employee, offer such services, and accordingly assume no liability whatsoever in connection with the use of the information contained herein. If legal, accounting, or tax advice is required, the services of a competent professional should be obtained.

© All rights reserved. May not be reproduced without permission.

July 2014 U.S. Contract Security Industry White Paper